
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 28 November 2022. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Culture and 
Visitor 
Economy 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 6 December 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Penny Robins (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Jill Thomas, Councillor Amanda Wheeler, 
Councillor Mary Whittington and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later 
date, via the SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of Interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Public Speaking 
The Council welcomes engagement from members of the public. To speak at this 
meeting please register no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting via 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

 

4.   Minutes from the meeting held on 6 September 2022 (Pages 3 - 16) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 
5.   Updates from the previous meeting 

 

To consider actions agreed at the meeting held on 6 September 2022 
 

(Pages 17 - 18) 

6.   Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members or the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

7.   Mid-term performance indicators 
 

This Mid-Year update report outlines South Kesteven District Councils 
performance against the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) for the year of 2022/23. 
 

(Pages 19 - 27) 

8.   Refresh of the Cultural Strategy - Consultant (Verbal Update) 
 

 

9.   Development of Visitor Economy Strategy 
 

This report informs the Culture and Visitor Economy Committee of 
commissioning intensions to drive place marketing plans going forward.  
Approval is being sought to develop a Strategy to grow South 
Kesteven’s visitor economy and support for commissioning technical 
expertise to support Officer’s in the development of the Strategy. 
 

(Pages 29 - 34) 

10.   Work Programme 2022-2023 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022-23. 
 

(Pages 35 - 38) 

11.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances decides is urgent 
 

 



1 
 

Minutes  
 

Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Tuesday, 6 September 2022, 14:00 
 

Council Chamber – South 
Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 
Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Penny Robins (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
Councillor Amanda Wheeler 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
 

Other Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Harish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor Richard Cleaver 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren 
 

Cabinet Members in attendance  
 

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
 

Officers 
 

Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture)  
Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing and Property) 
Karen Whitfield (Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure) 
Jon Hinde (Head of Economic Development) 
Jade Newby (Tourism and Visitor Economy Officer) 
Patrick Astill (Communications Officer) 
James Welbourn (Democratic Services Manager) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

 
14. Apologies for absence 

 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and announced a one-minute’s 
silence in memory of Councillor Judy Smith who sadly passed away recently. 

 
There were no apologies received. 

3

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

 
There was an Alliance SK vacancy at this committee meeting which was filled by 
Councillor Virginia Moran.  

 
15. Disclosure of Interests 

 
There were none.  

 
16. Public Speaking 

 
Councillors Richard Cleaver spoke under agenda item 7, Update on Markets and 
requested the Committee to consider the following points: 

 
• Grantham Market requires a taxpayer subsidy of £50k to operate whilst Stamford 

Market returns a surplus to the Council of £17k per year. This is an unacceptable 
disparity, and any study should seek to identify how this might be reduced. 

• On Climate Change we should seek to eliminate all use of fossil fuels on our 
markets. We need to carry out a study which encompasses the provision of on-
street EV charging points which can also supply power to our markets on market 
days as well as to our street fairs when they are operating.  We need to eliminate 
the use of noisy, smelly, polluting diesel generators. 

• Existing stall holders should be encouraged to promote their businesses via the 
Hello SK mobile app 

• Any study should consider the opportunities for  
o expanding onto additional sites  
o expanding the number of days on which markets operate 
o attracting greater footfall by improving the layout of the markets 
o improvements to the promotion of the markets 

 
Councillor Richard Cleaver spoke under agenda item 10, Refresh of the Cultural 
Strategy and made the following observations: 

• It is vital that the Committee considers urgently what actions need to be taken 
not just to mitigate, but to reverse, the damage done particularly to Stamford Arts 
Centre in the last 12 months. This damage clearly conflicts with SKDC's stated 
strategic objective to be "the best district in which to live, work, and visit".   

• We can't achieve the objective of being the best district in which to live, 
work, and visit if we adopt a strategy to reduce our Cultural offer to be just as 
poor as that provided in our neighbouring authorities. 

• We do need to establish robust partnerships to improve co-operation to create 
more events, high quality events, and well-attended events with artists, theatre 
companies, musicians, cultural entrepreneurs, indoor and outdoor venue 
operators, schools and colleges as well as our town councils and neighbouring 
authorities.  

• The cultural strategy must take account of the planned population growth in our 
towns under the SKLP and of the opportunities which new major housing 
developments can offer.   For example, planned green spaces should be 
designed so that they are suitable for outdoor cultural events as well as leisure 

4



3 
 

activities - and any new schools or school expansions should offer improved 
facilities for cultural activities which will benefit the entire local community. 

• We need a strategy to deliver on making our cultural offer more attractive to all 
those parts of our community who are under-represented in our current 
audiences - including different age-groups and different socio-economic groups.  

• We need a strategy which empowers us to be nimble to react and adapt 
successfully to changes in media technology. 

• We need a strategy to recognise that for Stamford in particularly our cultural offer 
is a vital part of our tourist economy and so must thrive in order to stimulate 
the economy. 

• Finally, it seems odd to create a cultural strategy after having just decimated the 
Arts Centres' budgets - it smacks of shutting the stable door after the horse has 
bolted." 

Henry Sauntson and Stephen Burnett spoke under agenda item 10, Refresh of the 
Cultural Strategy.  

 
17. Minutes from the meeting held on 14 June 2022 

 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on 14 
June 2022 be confirmed as a correct record.  

 
18. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
There were none.  

 
19. Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members 

or the Head of Paid Service 
 

There were none.  
 

20. Update on Markets 
 

The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy highlighted the report that 
provided an update on current operation of the Council-run markets: Bourne, 
Grantham and Stamford.  

 
The Director for Housing and Property presented the report which outlined 
information on the three Council-run markets, including an appendix which provided 
financial figures for the last three years and current budget.  

 
It was suggested that part of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund be utilised for studies 
to obtain external expertise, to undertake benchmarking against other market 
towns, with the aim of understanding successes to follow and pitfalls to avoid.  

 
A query was raised whether the ‘HelloSK App’ for the markets was sufficiently 
prominent.  

 

5



4 
 

ACTION: For the Markets Team to provide an update on the ‘HelloSK App’.  
 

A Member was pleased to see the consideration of carbon reduction for the 
markets and asked whether consideration could be given for street fairs.  

 
Stamford market had been successful recently. Charities had contacted a Member 
to express their interest in hosting charity stalls on the market. It was queried 
whether more space could be allocated at the market for charity stalls to trade. 

 
Issues were raised in relation to dangerous pathways and a specific building 
obstructing pedestrians’ ability to walk around Stamford town during market day. It 
was queried as to what the Council could do to work with the owner of the 
dangerous building to ensure it was repaired to avoid an accident occuring. 

 
ACTION: For the Director of Growth and Culture to consult with East 
Midlands Building Consultancy and provide an update to the Member in 
question.   

 
A query was raised on content within the report and the reasoning behind Bourne 
Saturday Market not being mentioned.  

 
It was confirmed this had been an oversight within the report and more detailed 
information in terms of stalls and occupancy on all markets on different days would 
be provided in due course to Members. 

 
ACTION: For the Director of Housing and Property to share information 
around stalls and occupancy on all markets relating to the different days they 
are held.  

 
It was noted the Climate Change and Sustainability Officer completed work around 
energy use and carbon reduction within markets.  

 
Clarification was sought on how street fairs were managed. 

 
It was confirmed that street fairs were managed separately to markets, yet 
collaboratively between colleagues from the Growth and Culture Directorate and 
the Markets Team.  

 
One Member raised concern and queried how the Council was losing £84,000 per 
year from providing a market in Grantham.   

 
It was highlighted that Stamford Market had a waiting list for stalls and it was 
suggested this market be extended.  

 
The feasibility of layout and location of Bourne Market was discussed, as well as 
the remaining two markets.  

 

6



5 
 

It was highlighted, it cost the Council £12,000 to gain permission to hold Grantham 
Market on certain streets. It was questioned as to who the permission granted is 
obtained from.  

 
It was queried as to why Bourne Market had such a high amount of money spent on 
employee expenses. Bourne Market had pop-up stalls and previous stall holders 
usually assembled these themselves.  

 
Clarification was sought on what premises expenses were covered in the running of 
the markets.  

 
The Director of Housing and Property clarified the questions raised: 

 

• The item had been brought to the Committee’s attention due to the markets 
operating at a net loss. It was proposed that external support be commissioned 
to understand both how markets can be grown and to explore the role markets 
have in supporting start-up businesses to encourage economic growth.  

• The £12,000 paid for the permission to hold Grantham Market was paid to 
Buckminster Estates, which was a long-standing covenant for the right to hold 
the market.  

• The premises expenses related to costs associated with the storage of market 
equipment when not in use.  

 
ACTION: For the Director of Housing and Property to provide Committee with 
a breakdown of the salary and number of hours worked for Bourne employee 
expenses.    

 
One Member suggested that cheaper storage options for market materials be 
explored to reduce overall costs.  

 
ACTION: For the Director of Housing and Property to provide Committee with 
a breakdown of costing for storage facilities and what premises are utilised 
for market materials.  
 
One Member queried how the waiting list for Stamford Markets was managed at 
present and at what pace the waiting list is worked through.  

 
It was confirmed that Stamford Market had very high demand, with most pitches 
being occupied. At Stamford Friday Market, 88 pitches were occupied, mostly stalls.  

 
ACTION: For the Director for Housing and Property to provide a definitive 
figure around the waiting list time for Stamford market pitches.  

 
Members reiterated the potential extension of Stamford Market to possibly increase 
the number of stalls and traders. It was suggested this be explored.  

 

7



6 
 

It was noted that market materials for Bourne Market were stored in an old 
container on the Council’s land. It was queried as to why storage expenses were 
paid for Bourne Market materials.  

 
ACTION: For the Director for Housing and Property to explore the storage 
expenses for Bourne Market materials.  

 
It was confirmed this had been an oversight within the report and more detailed 
information in terms of stalls and occupancy on all markets on different days would 
be subsequently provided. 

 
ACTION: For the Director of Housing and Property to share information 
around stalls and occupancy on all markets on the different days they are 
held.  

 
One Member queried whether the Council had incentivised and encouraged stall 
holders at Stamford Market to use other markets within the District, due to the high 
demand.  

 
Anecdotal evidence had shown the Council had encouraged stall-holders to use 
other markets within the District. It was found that stall-holders would not want to 
relocate to another market in the District.  

 
The Council encouraged stall-holders to hold a membership with the National 
Market Traders Association. 

 
A query was raised whether the team had researched other market towns outside 
of South Kesteven, to see whether they dealt with having one thriving market and 
others being subsidised and affected by the busier market.   

 
It was highlighted that South Kesteven was unusual in the number of market towns 
the Council had. It was suggested that professional support would be utilised to 
understand competition and dynamics between different market towns.  

 
A query was raised on where the available market pitches were advertised.  

 
It was suggested schools and further education establishments could work with 
market operators to enable students entering the market industry to embrace 
markets as a possible career.  

 
A further suggestion was made in relation to youth markets and whether this could 
support entrepreneurial skills in young people.  

 
It was confirmed that markets are advertised through the Council’s social media 
platforms, including information on the Council’s website. 

 
Successful examples would be explored of other markets to form the scope of the 
proposed feasibility study, including students and young people.  

8



7 
 

 
Concern was raised on the low community interest of Grantham and Bourne 
Markets. It was queried how the Council could encourage people to attend 
Grantham and Bourne Markets to utilise other amenities and increase the overall 
footfall.  

 
The Committee were reassured that action plans would be completed for each 
market in conjunction with external support in a bespoke approach. 

 
It was recommended the Council become more proactive with further 
encouragement to market traders and that further advertisement on market stalls 
could be included within SKtoday.  

 
One Member raised concern of issues around the waiting time for a response from 
the enquiry form on the Council’s website when submitting interest for becoming a 
stall holder at a market.  

 
It was noted that additional market days may be restrictive for market stall-holders 
due to other commitments. 

 
A query was raised on whether Grantham market could be held in a different 
location so the £12,000 Buckminster Estate expense would not be incurred.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy confirmed that Officers were 
exploring other locations for Grantham market to be held.    

 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED that the Officers undertake works on 
marketing of the markets as a matter of urgency.  

 
Clarification was sought on whether the £12,000 Buckminster Estate expense was 
a Charter entitlement or whether it was rent for the land.  

 
It was confirmed the expense was a Charter entitlement.  

 
Grantham market employee expenses were increasing by over 50%. It was queried 
as to whether this meant an increase of employees or whether current employees 
were being paid more.  

 
Clarity was sought on the increase of figures in terms of premises expenses.  

 
One Member queried whether the Council consult with stall-holders beyond 
exchanging payment, if not, whether there was a ‘Stallholders Forum’.  

 
A query was raised on how much of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund would need to 
be paid to external consultants and whether enough consultation with known 
stakeholders had taken place.  

 

9



8 
 

It was highlighted that the Market Supervisor had working relationships with market 
traders. Consultation with current and potential market traders had been noted in 
the report.  

 
It was confirmed that technical expertise and benchmarking provided by consultants 
could cost between £6,000 to £10,000.  

 
The UK Shared Prosperity Fund was an allocation of £3.8 million and the Council 
should receive the first payment in early October 2022.  

 
It was suggested that market traders be given a questionnaire for their views to be 
considered prior to utilising part of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund to pay 
consultants.  

 
One Member raised a query as to whether a previous study had been completed, 
what the findings were and if the study had made a difference. 

 
AGREED: 

  
That the Committee:  

 
1. Requests a further detailed report on information relating to marketing 

and costings of the markets across South Kesteven.  
 

21. Refresh of the Cultural Strategy 
 

In response to a public speaker, it was confirmed the Assistant Director of Culture 
and Leisure had previously met with a group of individuals in Stamford and had a 
positive meeting regarding Stamford Arts Centre.  

 
The independent Arts Review had meant the staffing structure across the whole 
Arts service had been reduced.  

 
An interim appointment (and internal promotion) had been made for an Arts and 
Cultural Services Manager, who would be tasked with embedding those changes 
within the structure of the Arts Services.  

 
It was highlighted that community input was required going forward for Stamford 
Arts Centre.  

 
The Council were currently marketing the opportunity for the operation of Stamford 
Arts Centre café and had already received interest.  

 
The possibility for the Tourist Information Centre to be restored would be explored.  

 
There had been changes to the fees and charges of the Stamford Arts Centre 
Gallery. However, slots had been booked up until May 2023 and enquiries were 
being taken for 2024.  

10



9 
 

 
It was queried as to whether the management structure of Stamford Arts Centre 
could be looked at.  

 
The Committee were reassured that a focus group for Stamford Arts Centre had 
been suggested to meet quarterly or twice a year.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy introduced the report 
detailing the work associated with the development of a refreshed Cultural Strategy 
for the District. The refreshed Cultural Strategy was a key priority within the 
Council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2023. 

 
It was highlighted that the refresh of the Cultural Strategy was vital in identifying 
and articulating the Council’s vision for the service. The refresh would set out how 
the Council would work with other providers to promote cultural opportunities within 
the District.  

 
The report detailed the approach in securing external expert support to develop a 
new Cultural Strategy with the full support and input of the Committee. It also 
detailed headline topics for inclusion within the refreshed Cultural Strategy and 
welcomed further suggestions.  

 
One Member highlighted the importance of a company with the correct knowledge 
to carry out the work.  

 
The Committee welcomed their involvement with the refresh of the Cultural 
Strategy.  

 
Members raised the importance of the community involvement with the refresh of 
the Cultural Strategy. It was suggested community and focus groups should be 
involved within the refresh.  

 
It was highlighted that a clear strategic rationale was in place for the Cultural 
Strategy refresh, and this could be achieved in conjunction and consultation with 
the local community.  

 
It was confirmed there was a saving from the Arts and Cultural Services Manager 
role which would be utilised to appoint a suitably qualified consultant.  

 
A query was raised on how much the Council were anticipating on spending to 
appoint a suitably qualified consultant to work with Officers and Members to 
develop a new Cultural Strategy for the District.    

 
It was noted the cost to appoint a consultant was currently unknown. Once the 
scope was agreed by Committee, Officers would then complete market research. 
The importance of an open procurement was mentioned in order to identify a 
suitably qualified consultant.  

 

11



10 
 

It was clarified the previous independent Arts Review was completed by Sports and 
Leisure Consultancy (SLC), and carried out by a specific cultural consultant.   

 
One Member suggested whether an individual from a local community group could 
be appointed to act as consultant on the refresh of the Cultural Strategy.  

 
It was confirmed that procurement rules would prevent the Council from specifying 
the appointment of a consultant, However, it was welcomed that any individual 
within the community, who was suitably qualified, could apply for the procurement 
opportunity.  

  
It was queried whether the appointment of a consultant would come before the 
Committee prior to confirmation, whether Committee would be informed of the cost 
of the appointment and the basis on which this would need to be considered.  

 
ACTION: For the Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure to provide an 
update on the cost of the appointment of a consultant. 

 
One Member suggested inviting and engaging with community groups in a 
‘brainstorm’ approach to gather their opinions on ways in which the Council should 
proceed.   

 
It was clarified that Officers were already working on forming focus groups. 

 
Members suggested the cancelled Committee meeting on 13 October 2022 be 
reinstated to further discuss leisure and art services. It was subsequently agreed 
that this would not be necessary.  

 
AGREED: 

 
1. To consider the key themes suggested for inclusion in the new Cultural 

Strategy and makes any further recommendations for consideration.  
 

2. To endorse the commencement of a procurement exercise to appoint a 
suitably qualified consultant to work with Officers and Members of the 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
develop a new Cultural Strategy for the District. 

 
3. That focus groups are consulted with by the appointed consultant on the 

work associated with the refresh of the Cultural Strategy.  
 

22. Inspirational Women of South Kesteven 
 

The Chairman of the Council presented the report which outlined the importance of 
women’s history and their contributions to South Kesteven.  

 

12



11 
 

The Inspirational Women of South Kesteven film was due to take place on 21 
November 2022 to coincide with the birth of pioneer Edith Smith, who was the first 
woman Police Officer to be given the power of arrest whilst serving in Grantham.  

 
As a society, there is a responsibility to dismantle the stereotypes that hold women 
back. Topics such as caring responsibilities should be considered.  

 
The encouragement of young girls to consider all career and study options was 
highlighted.  

 
The importance of including young boys and men was highlighted as they are often 
found to be influenced by outdated views of what is expected of them.  

 
South Kesteven had been identified as a District rich in history and heritage with 
buildings, spaces and the stories of people who lived and worked in them. A key 
theme of the Council’s Corporate Plan had been to help create healthy and strong 
communities by celebrating and enhancing the history of the District.  

 
The concept of the district-wide blue plaque guide and information was suggested 
to celebrate and commemorate the link between people and buildings.  

 
One Member queried a three points relating to Inspirational Women of South 
Kesteven: 

 

• Whether women could be added to the list of inspirational women within the 
District who were alive.  

• That the current inspirational women list be inclusive and diverse. 

• Whether local businesses, community groups,  Parish andTown Councils could 
be involved in identifying local inspirational women. 

 
It was questioned how the Inspirational Women of South Kesteven film would be 
launched and screened.  

 
One Member queried the timescale in which the film had been completed, as it had 
been commissioned in 2019. 

 
It was highlighted there had been the COVID-19 pandemic during this time, which 
may have held up completion of the film.  

 
AGREED: 

 
That the Committee:  

 
1. supported by Officers, scope out a wide programme of events to cover a 

twelve-month period, featuring women showcased in the Inspirational 
Women of South Kesteven Film.  

 

13



12 
 

2. complements the existing and valued efforts of Civic Societies, by 
exploring the introduction of a District-wide Blue Plaque Guide and 
Information Trails.  
 

3.     once the scoping of events and the review of a District-wide Blue Plaque 
Guide and Information Trails has been undertaken, makes any 
necessary recommendations to Cabinet. 
 

23. STEAM - Economic Impact 
 

The Head of Economic Development presented the report and presentation to the 
Committee. Scarborough, Tourism, Economic, Activity, Monitor (STEAM) data had 
been discussed at the previous Committee meeting in the context of the Council’s 
key performance indicators (KPIs) and how economic impact was measured.  

 
It had previously been agreed that once the latest data was available, this would be 
brought to the Committee in a succinct way.  

 
The Tourism and Visitor Economy Officer was introduced as the person who would 
be leading on several actions identified the information provided via the STEAM 
data.  

 
STEAM was an economic impact modelling process which approaches the 
measurement of tourism using local supply side data, tourism performance and 
visitors survey data collection.  

 
As referenced in the report, the data is used from four key visitor types which 
provides a significant amount of information that allows visitor behaviours, spend, 
stay patterns and greatest impact of sub-sectors, to be tracked. 

 
A presentation of the slides was given during which the overall outcome of South 
Kesteven’s visitor economy from pre, during and post COVID-19 pandemic and 
lockdown restrictions was highlighted.  

 
The STEAM data would be used for information to bring the new South Kesteven 
Visitor Economy Strategy (scheduled for the next Committee meeting) framed 
around the four key headings of: visitor days, visitor numbers, economic impact and 
employment.  

 
Clarification was sought on whether non-service accommodation growth was linked 
to Airbnb’s. Concern was raised on the growth of Airbnb’s directly affecting 
availability of housing in the District.  

 
AGREED: 

 
1.     Welcome the presentation detailing the information contained within the 

STEAM report.  
 

14



13 
 

2.     With Officer support, understand the impacts on the sector over recent 
years aligning this to future business support activity and the 
developing South Kesteven Visitor Economy Strategy. 
 

24. Work Programme 2022-23 
 

The Committee noted the Work Programme for 2022-23.  
 

Members requested the following items be added to the Work Programme for the 
next meeting on 6 December 2022: 

 

• Refresh of the Cultural Strategy – Consultant  

• Further update on Markets 

• Progress update - Deepings Leisure Centre  
 

One Member requested that Stamford Leisure facilities be added onto the agenda. 
 

It was confirmed that a meeting would be held to understand the issues around 
leisure facilities in Stamford, before bringing a report to the Committee.  

 
25. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances 

decides is urgent 
 

There were none.  
 

26. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 16 :17 . 
 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



Action Sheet 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 6 September 2022 meeting.  

 
Minute 

no. 
Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Response/Status Deadline 

20 Update on 
Markets 

For the Markets Team to provide an update 
on the ‘HelloSK App’. 

 

Markets Team Email sent to Committee 
Members on 11 November 2022 

Complete  

20 Update on 
        Markets 

 

For the Director of Growth and Culture to 
consult with East Midlands Building 
Consultancy and provide an update to the 
Member in question.  

Nicola McCoy-Brown 
(Director of Growth and 

Culture) 

 
Email sent to Committee 

Members on 11 November 2022 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Complete 

20 Update on  
Markets 

 

For the Director of Housing and Property to 
share information around stalls and 
occupancy on all markets relating to the 
different days they are held.  
 
To provide Committee with a breakdown of 
the salary and number of hours worked for 
Bourne employee expenses. 
 
To provide Committee with a breakdown of 
costing for storage facilities and what 
premises are utilised for market materials. 
 
To provide a definitive figure around the 
waiting list time for Stamford market pitches. 
 
To explore the storage expenses for Bourne 
Market materials.  
 
To share information around stalls and 
occupancy on all markets on the different 
days they are held.  
 

Andrew Cotton  
(Director of Housing and 

Property 

Email sent to Committee 
Members on 11 November 2022 

 

Complete 

17

A
genda Item

 5



Action Sheet 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 6 September 2022 meeting.  

 
21 Refresh of 

the Cultural 
Strategy 

For the Assistant Director of Culture and 
Leisure to provide an update on the cost of 
the appointment of a consultant.  

Karen Whitfield 
(Assistant Director of 
Culture and Leisure) 

Following a successful 
procurement exercise Red 
Quadrant have been appointed 
to develop a refreshed Cultural 
Strategy for the District. 
 
The advert attracted 30 
expressions of interest resulting 
in 10 tenders being received. 
Following evaluation the tender 
provided by Red Quadrant 
represented the best value in 
terms of price and the responses 
to the quality questions asked. 
 
The cost to the Council is £16,500 

 

Complete  

 

18



 
 

       

Culture & Visitor 
Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

6th December 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke 
                The Leader of the Council 
 
 

 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 

2022/23 Mid-Year Report 

Report Author 

Robert Warburton, Performance Analyst 

  Robert.warburton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

This Mid-Year update report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance 

against the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the year of 2022/23. 

 

 

Recommendations To The Committee 

1. Note the contents of the 2022/23 Mid-Year performance report. 

2. Members to consider if any concerns highlighted by the report require 
additional investigation to be added to the work programme. 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

Healthy and strong communities 

Clean and sustainable environment 

High performing Council 

19

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this 

report. 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Regular reporting on agreed actions and measures is to be welcomed from a 

governance point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on 

performance. 

 Alan Robinson, Monitoring Officer  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 

October 2020. It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance 

indicators (KPIs) and targets would be developed by the relevant overview 

and scrutiny committee, which would retain oversight of the performance 

management arrangements at a strategic level. These actions and indicators 

were presented to this committee and agreed on 17 November 2020. 

2.2 The Year End report for 2021/22 was presented to the Committee on 22 June 

2022 and outlined the performance against the Corporate Plan for the 

previous financial year.  

2.3 This report builds on these historical reports to provide an update on 

performance to the mid-year point of the 2022/23 financial year. It 

incorporates the changes recommended by the last KPI review to outline 

areas of the council’s performance which are successful and to advise where 

challenges may lay. From these results this committee may need to pay 

additional attention either through questions to senior officers during the 

session or more detailed investigations to be added to the committee work 

programme. 

 

20



 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Appendix 1 outlines the overall performance against the 4 actions being reported 

in this session, as well as specific performance against the sub measures 

contained within those. Specific commentary is provided for each action, but the 

summary is as follows:  

1. 2 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which are on 

or above target as planned.  

2. 2 actions are rated as Amber, these are those off target by less 

than 10% or where milestone achievement is delayed but with 

resolution in place to be achieved within a reasonable timeframe.  

3. 0 actions are rated Red. These are those falling significantly 

below target or overdue with no specific resolution date planned. 

 

3.2 There have been no areas of significant under performance identified in this 

report. 

 

4. Appendices 
 

4.1 Appendix 1 - C & VE Mid-Year KPI Report 2022-23 

 

  

 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

Culture & Visitor Economy Performance Targets 

Priority No: Ac on: Status: 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 9 
Work with partners and attractions, to promote visitor economy and increase 

visitor spend in the District, including the adoption of a Tourism Strategic 
Framework. 

 

Healthy and Strong Communities 11 Improve and invest in the local arts & cultural venues across the District.  
 

Healthy and Strong Communities 13 
Review Arts services within the district with ambition to provide improved, 

efficient and accessible arts within the district.  

 

Healthy and Strong Communities 14 Develop and adopt a Sport and Physical Activity Strategy.  
 

23

A
ppendix 1



Page 28 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 9 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Work with partners and attractions, to promote visitor economy and increase visitor spend in the District, including the adoption of a Tourism 
Strategic Framework. 

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy                                                
and Director of Growth And Culture Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Increase in the amount of visitor spend in the district. Development and adoption of a strategic document that positions 
SKDC at the centre of its Visitor Economy. The document will and draw-on, and support, the expertise of the existing VE 

sector, and other agencies involved in its promotion. 

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Number of newly engaged     
visitor economy attractions    

engaged 
40 Year End 55  

        
Increase in visitor economy 

spend 
£113,344,000 Annual £168,630,000 

    

Adoption of Tourism Strategic 
Framework                             

(Gross Value Added) 

To have adopted the 
Tourism     Strategic     

Framework 
Year End On Target 

    
Commentary : The economic development team continues to develop excellent working relationships with a number of local tourism businesses and             
attractions. The use of social media continues to be prominent in this engagement however there is also an increase in face to face meetings to directly       
support and advise individual businesses. 

In addition to building and maintaining strong relationships with businesses the role of the visitor economy is to support and promote the leisure and culture   
offering of SKDC. This is evident through both coordinated social media messaging and the visible presence of SKDC owned culture and leisure facilities on 
the HelloSK app. 

We are now in receipt of the latest industry standard visitor economy data (STEAM) and this update was reported to a recent Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. This information demonstrates that across virtually all of the indicators, levels in 2021 did not return to those of the            
pre-pandemic era except for the continuing trend of staying in non serviced accommodation which is a trend that continues to grow where other more            
traditional forms of serviced accommodation continued to struggle. 

As previously reported the process for bringing forward a new Tourism strategic framework will be presented to Culture and VE OSC in the near future. 

Current     
Status 

24



Page 29 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Healthy And Strong Communities 11 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Improve and invest in the local arts & cultural venues across the District.  

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy and Director of Growth 
and Culture  Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Fit for purpose facilities at Stamford Arts Centre, Grantham Guildhall and Bourne Exchange as well as other 
Council-supported arts and cultural assets across the district  

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 
Value of capital works      

carried out  
Baseline + 

10% 
Year End   

        

Maintaining properties to  
required standards  

60% of action 
plan          

completed. 
Year End  

    
Commentary : Approved capital improvement works for the arts centre are ongoing. A contractor has been secured to undertake major     
roofing repairs to Stamford Arts Centre in 2023, and works are currently ongoing to the roof at the Guildhall Arts Centre to address water      
ingress. Further major repair of the Guildhall Arts Centre roof has been included within the budget proposals for 2023/24. The toilets in both 
Stamford Arts Centre and the Guildhall Arts Centre have been completely refurbished to a high standard and customers have been very      
complimentary about the changes 

Preventative and reactive maintenance is undertaken by the Council’s contractor across all three venues. Following a recent inspection work is 
being undertaken to improve the fire alarm system at the Guildhall Arts Centre. 

 

 

Current     
Status 

25



Page 30 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Healthy And Strong Communities 13 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Improve and invest in the local arts & cultural venues across the District.  

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy and Director of Growth and 
Culture  Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look Like : Fit for purpose facilities at Stamford Arts Centre, Grantham Guildhall and Bourne Exchange as well as other              
Council-supported arts and cultural assets across the district  

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Staff review and restructure 2021/22 Year End - 
    

Review  the programming and 
opening hours of the three cen-
tres in Grantham, Bourne and 

Stamford 

2021/22 Year End - 

    

Commentary: Work to progress the recommendations of the independent arts review are ongoing.  The opening hours and programming for each arts   
venue have been revised and are kept under review.  There has been a successful transition of telephone bookings to the Council’s Customer Services 
Team, with the majority on bookings are being made on-line.  The programmes at the centres are increasing in line with COVID recovery, early sales for the 
pantomime at Guildhall Arts Centre are extremely good. 

The arts centres are valuable community facilities and opportunities are being explored for alternative use, for example Guildhall Arts Centre is being used 
as a day centre for adults with learning difficulties and there are plans to involve them into the wider offer of the arts centre. The opportunity to reintroduce a 
volunteer led Visitor Centre is being explored for Stamford Arts Centre. 

Red Quadrant have been appointed to develop a refreshed Cultural Strategy for the district.  Proposed key themes have been developed with Members of 
the Culture and Visitor Economy OSC. The aim of the strategy to identify the Council’s ongoing role in providing, along with partners, a high-quality cultural 
offer which meets corporate objectives.  Consultation will begin with key stakeholders from mid-November. 

Closer working links have been formed with cross-Council teams to ensure activity is promoted.  This includes the addition of the arts centre activity on the  
HelloSK app and closer ties with colleagues in Communications and the Economic Development teams. 

Current     Sta-
tus 

Identify potential future delivery 
models 

2022/23 Year End - 
    

Develop new Cultural Strategy 
with clear action plan 

2022/23 Year End - 
    

26



Page 31 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Healthy And Strong Communities 14 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Develop and adopt a Sport and Physical Activity Strategy.  

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Leisure and Director of Growth and Culture  Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Adopting and achieving the outcomes of a Sports and Physical Activity Strategy for the district  

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Embed the sport and       
physical activity strategy 

Ongoing Annual New Measure 
        

Develop a programme of 
outreach activities with the 
Council’s leisure provider 

and other partners 

Ongoing Annual New Measure 

    

Work with local partners to 
access funding available for 

projects 
Ongoing Annual New Measure 

    
Commentary :The Council’s Sports and Physical Activity Strategy was adopted in December 2021.  A new Leisure Officer began employment 
on 17 October 2022. Their primary focus is on delivering the action plan contained within the Strategy. 

Work has begun to work with key partners including Active Lincolnshire , and Lincs Inspire to develop a collaborative approach to increasing 
physical activity levels across the District.  Officers are  working closely with LeisureSK Ltd to identify alternative ways for residents to engage 
with physical activity, away from a traditional leisure centre setting.  This includes work to develop walks across South Kesteven as part of the 
Slow Ways initiative and early work to identify healthy lifestyle programmes. 

The leisure centres are widely promoted and LeisureSK Ltd has its own website and social media platforms.  They also feature on the HelloSK 
app. 

Current     
Status   

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

6 December 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Rosemary 
Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for 
Culture and Visitor Economy 
 

 

Development of South Kesteven District Council’s 

Visitor Economy Strategy 
 

Report Author 

Jon Hinde, Head of Economic Development 

   jon.hinde@investsk.co.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report informs the Culture and Visitor Economy Committee of commissioning 

intensions to drive place marketing plans going forward.  Approval is being sought to 

develop a Strategy to grow South Kesteven’s visitor economy and support for 

commissioning technical expertise to support Officer’s in the development of the Strategy. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee:  

1. Agrees there is a need to develop a Strategy to grow South Kesteven’s visitor 
economy 

2. Endorses the commencement of a procurement exercise to appoint a suitably 
qualified consultant to work with Officers and Members of the Committee to 
develop the Council’s Visitor Economy Strategy 

3. Consider the appropriateness of drawing together a cross-council working 
group to support the development of the Strategy 

 

29

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

• Growth and our economy 

• Healthy and strong communities 

 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The costs associated with this report which are detailed in paragraph 2.10 will be 

met from existing budgets. 

 

Completed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 An established framework is an eligible procurement route to enable the Council 

to secure external support to develop a new Visitor Economy Strategy. 

 

Completed by: Alan Robinson Monitoring Officer 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3 The Council places importance in building skills, knowledge, jobs and capacity so 

people can thrive in the visitor economy sector. This will include changing the 

perception of jobs in hospitality and having an accessible tourism experience for 

those with additional needs. Whilst no standout issues have been identified at this 

stage, diversity and inclusion implications will be fully considered during the 

development of the Visitor Economy Strategy. Equality and diversity, including 

access for all, will be a key thread running through the development of the Visitor 

Economy Strategy. When the draft Strategy is presented to the Committee for 

consideration this will be accompanied by an Equality Impact Assessment. 

 

 

30



Completed by: Jon Hinde Head of Economic Development 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4 The Strategy aims to develop a distinctive and unique brand for South Kesteven. 

Through promotion and marketing, the Council aims to raise the profile of South 

Kesteven, locally, regionally, nationally and globally. Importance is being placed on 

increasing the health, well-being and quality of life for visitors.  

 

Completed by: Jon Hinde Head of Economic Development 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.5 The Council wants to help people to feel empowered to share, enjoy, respect, 

understand and care for our environment and heritage and what makes South 

Kesteven unique and visitable. This is likely to require the Council to stimulate 

investment in developing relevant, high-quality products while protecting and 

preserving District assets for future generations. The Council aims to bring together 

providers to create a stronger, more coherent, joined up visitor economy offer. The 

ambition is to have a connected tourism product offer, both physically and digitally, 

as well as creating a place to visit that is environmentally sustainable and ensures 

those visits do not negatively impact on our beautiful district. 

 

Completed by: Jon Hinde Head of Economic Development 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 Tourism makes a key economic contribution to South Kesteven’s economy and the 

quality of life for the district’s resident population.  Scarborough Tourism Economic 

Activity Monitor (STEAM) is a tourism economic impact modelling process which 

enables measurement of tourism using local data, tourism performance and visitor 

survey data. As reported to this Committee on 6 September 2022, in 2021 the 

annual study by STEAM revealed:  

 

• an upturn in tourist numbers had helped to boost South Kesteven’s visitor 

economy by 3.5% to £168.63 million.  

• There were 2,232 full-time equivalent people employed in the sector.  

 

2.2 The district is rich in assets with national and global visitor appeal, is a popular 

destination for day visiting. 2.72 million people visited in 2021, equating to 3.41 

million visitor days.  

 

2.3 With events taking place throughout the year, all indicators point to significant future 

growth in South Kesteven’s visitor economy. It is in this context, there is a need to 

prepare a Strategy that defines shared priorities and collaborative interventions by 

the public and private sectors to grow the visitor economy in South Kesteven.   

31



 

2.4 The proposed Strategy will build on existing Council strategies, policies and 

stakeholder groups, such as the proposed establishment of a Local Economic 

Development Forum (reported to Cabinet in February 2022), the emerging refresh 

of the Cultural Strategy (reported to this Committee on 6 September 2022) and the 

planned new South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy (reported to 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee in November 2022). This is in addition to the proposed new project 

exploring the potential for a military heritage trail to explain the local build-up to the 

Battle of Arnhem in September 1944, which is included in a separate update report 

on the Armed Forces Covenant being presented to the Rural and Communities 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8 December 2022.  

 

2.5 Whilst covering the period from 2023 to 2026, the Strategy should be regarded as 

a flexible document that could be updated and amended as opportunities and 

circumstances dictate.  

 

2.6 The Corporate Plan (2020-2023) outlines South Kesteven District Council’s vision 

for the district and its role in fulfilling this and focuses on economic growth as a 

priority for the Council. The growth of the district’s visitor economy can contribute to 

achieving many aspects of this vision, especially in terms of:  

 

• A vibrant economy 

• The important roles town centres have in the regeneration of the district 

• A well-connected district 

• The quality of lifestyles and the life-work balance for citizens 

• Addressing inequalities 

• Attracting people to live, work and visit South Kesteven 

• Attracting inward investment, new business start-ups and growth in South 

Kesteven 
 

2.7 The Strategy will guide any limited public sector investment as well as collaborative 

partnership action to support the growth of the South Kesteven visitor economy.  It 

is not intended to guide the business decisions and market programmes of 

individual tourism businesses, other than in terms of helping them to understand 

how the public sector plans to invest in the district’s visitor economy and the 

opportunities this may provide for them to engage in collaborative projects.  

 

2.8 The intention is to produce the Strategy, to a timetable ready for approval to adopt 

in March 2023, based on three strategic priorities of:  
 

• creating compelling places to visit 

• building private sector marketing capacity, and 

• extending the benefits of tourism 
 

32



2.9 To meet this schedule, it is suggested specialists are appointed with appropriate 

experience and technical skills to support and subsequently build capacity of 

Officers.  

 

2.10 It is anticipated the detailed scope of this commission will be determined by a cross-

council working group. It is expected the total cost will be in the region of £10,000. 

As the Strategy relates to growth and investment, it is proposed the funds are 

sourced from the Economic Development Service’s 2022/2023 budget.  

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The potential value and importance of the sector presents a growth opportunity for 

the district. However, to maximise benefits, requires guidance and investment 

prioritisation.   

 

3.2 In completing the Strategy to deliver the Council’s aspirations, all stages of the 

process will be informed by a multi-disciplinary approach.  It is proposed Members 

consider this to be drawn from a cross-council working group.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The option to leave promotion of the visitor economy solely with the private sector 

was discounted because the success of the Strategy will ultimately rely as much on 

active public sector interventions and support, as on active private sector 

engagement and contributions. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 As a district-wide Visitor Economy Strategy would directly contribute to the 

Corporate Plan (2020-2023) commitment of being the best district in which to live, 

visit and work, it is logical for the Council to take the lead role in facilitating growth 

in the visitor economy sector – through its investment, use of assets and leadership.   

 

6. Background Papers 

 
6.1 Future Ways of Working for InvestSK Limited – Report to Cabinet, published on 8 

February 2022, available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32408/InvestSK%20Coverin

g%20Report%20FINAL.pdf 

 

6.2 Development of Cultural Strategy for the District – Report to Culture and Visitor 

Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published on 6 September 2022, 

available online at:  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35421/Refresh%20of%20the

%20Cultural%20Strategy.pdf 

 

33

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32408/InvestSK%20Covering%20Report%20FINAL.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32408/InvestSK%20Covering%20Report%20FINAL.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35421/Refresh%20of%20the%20Cultural%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35421/Refresh%20of%20the%20Cultural%20Strategy.pdf


6.3 Progress update on the new South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy 

2023-2028 - Report to Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published 22 November 2022, available online:  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36141/Progress%20Update

%20on%20new%20South%20Kesteven%20Economic%20Development%20Strat

egy%202023%20-%202028.pdf 

 

6.4 Armed Forces Covenant Update - Report to Rural and Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee, published 8 December 2022, available online at:  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=431

5 

 

 

 

 

34

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36141/Progress%20Update%20on%20new%20South%20Kesteven%20Economic%20Development%20Strategy%202023%20-%202028.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36141/Progress%20Update%20on%20new%20South%20Kesteven%20Economic%20Development%20Strategy%202023%20-%202028.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36141/Progress%20Update%20on%20new%20South%20Kesteven%20Economic%20Development%20Strategy%202023%20-%202028.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=4315
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=4315


Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23 

WORK PROGRAMME 

 

 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

 

6 December 2022 

Mid-term 
performance 
indicators 

To review the levels of progress in mid-term 
performance against the Corporate Plan Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2022/23 
 
Lead Officer: Debbie Roberts 
(Organisational Development and Change 
Manager) 

To ensure 
accountability to 
residents and to 
enable challenge 
where necessary 

Standing item for mid-year 
KPIs 

High performing 
Council 

Refresh of the 
Cultural Strategy – 
Consultant  
(Verbal Update) 

To discuss and agree content for the planned 
refresh of the Cultural Strategy 
 
Lead Officer: Karen Whitfield (Assistant 
Director for Culture and Leisure) 

To secure support to 
develop a refreshed 
Cultural Strategy for 
the district 

Agenda item from potential 
future items.  

Growth and our 
Economy 

Development of 
Visitor Economy 
Strategy  

To discuss content for inclusion in a Visitor 
Economy Strategy to assist and promote 
growth in South Kesteven’s visitor economy 
and alert Members of the intention to 
commission technical expertise to support 
Officer’s in the development of the Strategy 
  
Lead Officer: Jon Hinde (Head of 
Economic Development) 

To scrutinise the 
emerging content of 
the Visitor Economy 
Stratgey for South 
Kesteven and identify 
further opportunities 
through private/third 
sector /public sector -
collaboration  
 
 
 

 Growth and our 
Economy 

35

A
genda Item

 10



REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

 

28 February 2023 

Update on Heritage 
Action Zone shop 
front 
improvements in 
Grantham 

To assess the impact of the investment in 
helping breathe new life into the historic high 
street of Grantham for the communities and 
businesses that use them 
 
Lead Officer: Jon Hinde (Head of 
Economic Development) 

To provide an update 
on key projects 
identified for delivery, 
following the previous 
update in September 
2021 

 Growth and our 
Economy 

Update on Markets To explore how markets can provide tangible 
evidence of their valuable direct and indirect 
economic impact 
 
Lead Officer: Jon Hinde (Head of 
Economic Development) 

To provide an update 
to Members on market 
development, charges 
modelling and insight 
into the economic 
impact of the markets 
across the District  

Agenda item requested by 
the Committee Vice-
Chairman during 14 June 
2022 meeting 

Healthy 
and Strong 
Communities 

Arts Service 
Transitional 
Funding 

As the authority who had received money 
from the Arts Council National Portfolio, 
South Kesteven District Council is eligible to 
get transition money from the Arts Council 
Transition Programme  
  
Lead Officers: Karen Whitfield (Assistant 
Director – Culture and Leisure) 

To receive an update 
on why the application 
for National Portfolio 
Funding was 
unsuccessful and to 
receive information on 
future opportunities to 
engage with the Arts 
Council 

 Healthy and 
Strong 
Communities 

Update on the 
Inspirational 
Women of South 
Kesteven events 
and review of a 
district-wide Blue 

To support a key theme of the Corporate 
Plan to help create ‘healthy and strong 
communities’ by celebrating and enhancing 
the rich history of the District. To ensure 
alignment with the Inspirational Women of 
South Kesteven Film and consider if the 

To examine the 
proposed events 
aligned to Inspirational 
Women of South 
Kesteven and the 
review of a district-
wide Blue Plaque 

Agenda item requested by 
the Chairman of the Council 
during a meeting held on 18 
July 2022 

Healthy and 
Strong 
Communities 

36



REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Plaque Guide and 
Information Trails 

format could be expanded to cover the 
District 
 
Lead Officers: Karen Whitfield (Assistant 
Director – Culture and Leisure) and  
Jon Hinde (Head of Economic 
Development) 

Guide and Information 
Trails  

POTENTIAL FUTURE ITEMS 

Sport and Physical 
Activity Strategy 
Action Plan six-
monthly update 

To assess progress on the Sports and 
Physical Activity Strategy action plan  
 
Lead Officer: Karen Whitfield (Assistant 
Director for Culture and Leisure) 

To scrutinise 
performance on how 
the Council, together 
with partners, is 
delivering 
improvements in the 
provision and 
participation levels of 
sport and physical 
activity across the 
District 

 Healthy 
and Strong 
Communities 

37



REMIT 

The remit of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist 

with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Arts 

• Heritage 

• Markets and Fairs 

• Sports 

• Visitor Economy 

 

 

 

 

  

38


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from the meeting held on 6 September 2022
	Minutes

	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	7 Mid-term performance indicators
	Appendix 1 - C & VE Mid Year KPI Report 2022-23

	9 Development of Visitor Economy Strategy
	10 Work Programme 2022-2023

